
City Council Budget Workshop – July 30, 2014 
Page 1 
 
  
 

 1

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
CITY COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP 2 

MINUTES  3 
JULY 30, 2014 4 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 

Robert Wolfe, Mayor       Kirby Smith, Councilmember 9 
Lori Pfister, Vice Mayor  Robert Speaks, Councilmember  10 
Norman Hope, Councilmember    11 
         12 
STAFF PRESENT 13 
 14 
John Drury, City Administrator 15 
Nancy Barnett, City Clerk 16 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 17 
Richard Keith, Fire Chief 18 
Bill Neron, Director of Economic Development 19 
Chris Thompson, Director of Public Works 20 
Brad Hayes, Director of Utilities 21 
Stoney Lubins, Police Chief 22 
Jacques Skutt, Director of Community Development 23 
Tammey Rogers, Director of Community Services 24 
 25 
I  CALL TO ORDER 26 
 27 
Mayor Wolfe called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  28 
 29 
II. DELIVERY OF FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 30 
 31 
Mr. Drury asked Ms. Houghton to provide an overview of the Capital Improvement program 32 
document that had been distributed. 33 
 34 
Ms. Houghton outlined the 11 programs within the five year plan: 35 
 36 

 Beautification 37 
 Economic Development 38 
 Public buildings & facilities 39 
 Parks and Recreation 40 
 Transportation 41 
 Water Facility and improvements 42 
 Wastewater facilities and improvements 43 
 Water reuse 44 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 30, 2014 
Page 2 
 
  
 

 2

 Solid Waste 1 
 Stormwater 2 
 General Government 3 

 4 
She noted the total capital program is 96+ million. The capital improvement document identifies 5 
various funding sources such as general government, debt, mixed sources, etc. Prior year, 6 
current year, and four years into the future are identified. Also included are some graphs to 7 
show the percentage of each program to compare to the CIP as a whole. When a project is 8 
added it is assigned a numerical order in sequential order. If there is a downtown master plan 9 
correlation that is also identified. The status of any grant funding is also provided. 10 
 11 
Mr. Drury said in terms of the current proposed year for 2014-2015, anything listed is proposed 12 
for the next fiscal year; if it is highlighted the revenue source has not been identified. If it is not 13 
highlighted it is included in the budget. He noted that the option to purchase the County Records 14 
Center building is included however the source of funding has not been clearly identified. Street 15 
lighting is another example; it has been scheduled for the 2015-2016 budget instead of this 16 
year. 17 
 18 
Vice Mayor Pfister asked about the parking lot for the Pavilion. Mr. Drury said there is money 19 
budgeted to pave the Public Works parking lot, fence it with the same black fencing that is along 20 
Ruby Street, and to add signage. 21 
 22 
lll) Answer Previous Council Questions 23 
 24 
Mr. Drury said he will keep an ongoing list of questions and will update it throughout the budget 25 
process. 26 
 27 

1. Completion of capital improvement program – Delivered at this meeting 28 
2. Identify the exact amount of money that is needed to have a zero millage rate increase. 29 

Mr. Drury said staff took the figure from the budget deliberations in which the budget was 30 
reduced to the bus service; added the Property Appraiser’s final numbers; and then 31 
moved the parking lot funding from General Fund to infrastructure sales tax. After all 32 
those adjustments, Council would need to find $189,263 in either cuts or additional 33 
revenues to have a zero rate millage increase. 34 

3. Develop the proposed half mil tax impact on some sampling commercial businesses. Mr. 35 
Drury said he had analyzed some franchises in different parts of the community and 36 
picked two residential homes. The attachment provided shows (without a fire 37 
assessment) the taxes paid since 2008. Another spreadsheet also shows the data with a 38 
fire assessment. 39 

4. What does a mil equal in terms of dollars? A spread sheet showing this amount was 40 
provided (1 mil = $635,751) 41 

5. What has the population increase been since 2006? The City has had a 30.32% 42 
increase 43 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 30, 2014 
Page 3 
 
  
 

 3

6. What is the impact of a .75 stormwater increase from $6.25 to $7.00 per ERU on 1 
residential and large commercial with significantly sized impervious areas. For a resident 2 
it will go up to $9.00 a year. Van Gannaway is $60.75 a month or $729 a year and Sun 3 
State would go up by $15.18 a month or $182.28 a year. 4 

7. What is the proposed millage rate impact on a non-homesteaded home with a value of 5 
$150,000. That increase would be $6.09 a month or $73.03 a year. 6 

8. Explain why the fuel sales at the Seaplane Base Marina are projected to be lower next 7 
fiscal year. There was a large boating company doing engine testing for a year which is 8 
expected to stop. The Twin B relocated to Lakeland and a decrease has been seen 9 
related to that. 10 

 11 
lV. Budget Discussion 12 
 13 
Mayor Wolfe said he believed the Alfred and Caroline Street lighting should be put into the 14 
upcoming budget to make the project complete. He noted the residents and businesses have 15 
gone through difficulties and this would be an enhancement to have lighting on the streets. He 16 
noted that Captain Myers retirement is coming up and he understood that his position will not be 17 
filled. Chief Lubins confirmed. Mayor Wolfe said he believed that salary figure could be used to 18 
pay for the lighting 19 
 20 
Councilmember Hope asked for confirmation on the salary figure. Ms. Houghton responded that 21 
there will be sufficient funds for installation and to pay for the lighting costs. 22 
 23 
Vice Mayor Pfister spoke in support of putting in the lights now, as a goal of the project was to 24 
make the community more walkable. 25 
 26 
Mr. Drury confirmed that the direction he was hearing was to take out the budgeted Captain’s 27 
position and add the street lights. He said staff will bring back an adjusted budget that reflects 28 
that and also the adjustments to the two union contracts will be added. Councilmember Hope 29 
agreed. He noted the infrastructure for the lighting has already been added. 30 
 31 
Mr. Drury noted Councilmember Smith had asked that Council be apprised of his concerns as 32 
he was unable to attend this meeting due to a previously planned absence. Ms. Barnett read the 33 
following comments provided by Councilmember Smith: 34 
 35 

 Keep the current millage rate 36 
 Does not support the new Finance Department position for inventory management 37 
 Agrees with the Street Department position and the new truck 38 
 Agrees with the mower for Utilities and Parks 39 
 Agrees with the extra garbage truck pursuant to receiving some new data on homes 40 

 41 
V. Establish Maximum Tentative Millage Rate 42 
 43 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 30, 2014 
Page 4 
 
  
 

 4

Mayor Wolfe noted whatever rate is set can be lowered but not raised. In addition because there 1 
are two councilmembers absent, if the original increase were to be approved at .4869, a 3-0 2 
vote would be required. Mayor Wolfe said he agreed with Councilmember Hope on the .2977 3 
increase however not all the numbers are in and he would not want to be forced to make further 4 
cuts without having all the data. 5 
 6 
Councilmember Hope said he would like to set a .50 or a half a mil increase as the maximum, 7 
knowing that Council does not wish to approve that as a final figure unless it is absolutely 8 
necessary and he said he would prefer the .2977 if that can be accomplished. 9 
 10 
MOTION 11 
 12 
Norman Hope moved to approve a half mil increase (.50), seconded by Lori Pfister. 13 
 14 
Mayor Wolfe asked if the proposed .4869 was set for a specific reason, and if Council exceeds 15 
that amount would that be lawful. Ms. Houghton answered in the affirmative. 16 
 17 
Mr. Drury said that amount is within the percentage of the rollback rate for regular majority. Mr. 18 
Drury said the motion he had heard from Council is for a maximum tentative millage rate of 19 
6.9531 which equates to a .5 mil increase. Council confirmed that this figure was correct. 20 
 21 
The motion carried unanimously 3-0. 22 
 23 
Mr. Drury noted the next Budget Workshop will be at the Regular Council Meeting of August 6, 24 
2014. 25 
 26 
Mayor Wolfe said he believed Council should work towards getting the millage rate cut by .2 27 
 28 
Adjournment 29 
 30 
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 4:46 p.m. 31 
 32 
Respectfully submitted, 33 
 34 
 35 
___________________________ 36 
Nancy Barnett, C.M.C. 37 
City Clerk 38 


